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Be f ore STOWERS, Chairman; UPTON and STANTON, Commissioners. 

PER CURIAM: 

A Recommended Order of Hearing Officer John T. Fowler, 
Sr., dated December 19, 1975, is before the Commission for review. 

Finding no error in the application of the law to the 
facts herein, and the evidence appearing to adequately support 
the findings and conclusions of the Hearing Officer, it is the 
unanimous order of the Review Commission that the Recommended 
Order of the Hearing Officer be and it hereby is AFF IRMED, and 
that the penalties and citations involved herein stand AFFIRMED 
as proposed. 

Dated: March 5, 1976 
Frankfort, Ken tucky 

DECISION NO. 243 

✓ H. L: Stowers, Chairman 

/s/ Charles B. U~ton 
Char l es B. Upton, Commissioner 

/s/ Merle H. Stanton 
Merle H. Stanton, Commissioner 
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This is to certify that copy of this Decision and 
Order has been served by mailing or personal delivery on the 
following: 

Commissioner of Labor (Messenger Service) 
Commonwealth of Kentucky 
Attention: Honorable Michaed D. Ragland 

Executive Director for 
Occupational Safety and Health 

Honorable Kenneth E. Hollis 
General Counsel 
Department of Labor 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 
Attention: Peter J. Glauber 

Assistant Counsel 

Mr. Thomas G. Thomas 
Thomas Automatic Car Wash 
5364 Dixie Highway 
Louisville, Kentucky 40216 

Honorable Ronald Snyder 
Attorney at Law 
3007 _ Sprowl Road 
Jeffersontown, Kentucky 40299 

(Messenger Service) 

(Certified Mail #456138) 

(Certified Mail #456139) 

This 5th day of March, 1976. 

_Q•~-~-,,,-_·~AA/J~ "'= ,L_..[£/]~c:f/V<---Ca..= 
Itis R. -Barrett 
Executive Director 
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KENTUCKY OCCU PAT IONA L S A F ETY AND HEALTH 

REVIEW COMMISSIOl)J 

CAPITAL PLAZA Tow ic R 

F R ANKFORT, KEN TU CKY 40 60 1 

PHO N E (502) 564-68 9 2 

De c ember 19, 1975 

COMMISS I ONER OF LABOR 
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

vs. 

THOMAS AUTOMATIC CAR WASH 

NOTICE OF RECEIPT OF 
RECOMMENDED ORDER, AND 

ORDER OF THIS COMMISSION 

H . L . STO WE R S 

CHA I RMAN 

ME RL E H. STANTON 

ME MB ER 

C H A R LE S 8. U P TON 
MEMBER 

KOSHRC :/f 19 7 

COMPLAINANT 

RESPONDENT __ ,. 

All parties to the above-styled action before this 
Review Commission will take notice that pursuant to our Rules 
of Procedure a Decision, Find ings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, 
and Recommended Order is attached hereto as a part of this 
Notice and Order of this Commission. 

You will further take notice that pursuant to Section 
48 of .our Rules of Procedure, any party aggrieved by this de­
cision may within 25 days from date of this Notice submit a 
~etition for discretionary review by this Commission. 

Pursuant to Section 47 of our Rules of Procedure, 
jurisdiction in this matter now rests solely in this Commission, 
and it is hereby ordered that unless this Decision, Findings of 
Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Recorrrrnended Orde r is called for 
review and further con sideration by a member of this Commission 
within 30 days -of this date, it is a dop ted and affirmed as the 
Decision, Findings of Fact , Con clusions of Law, and Final Order 
of this Commission i n the above - styled matter. 

Parties will not receive furth er communication from 
the Review Commission unle s s a Direction .f or Review has been 
filed by one or more Review Corrrrnission members. 
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Copy of this Notice and Order has been served by 
·mailing or personal delivery on the following: 

Commissioner of Labor 
Commonwealth of Kentucky 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 
Attention: Honorable Michael D. Ragland 

Executive Director for 
Occupational Safety & Health 

Honorable Earl M. Cornett 
General Counsel 
Department of Labor 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 
Attention: Peter J. Glauber 

Assistant Counsel 

Mr. Thomas G. Thomas 
Thomas Automatic Car Wash 
5364 Dixie Highway 
Louisville, Kentucky 40216 

(Certified Mail 1ft 456058) 

Thi--s~l9th-day of December, 1975. 

~<(~~di 
~- Barrett 

Executive Director 
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KENTUCKY·OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY 
AND HEALTH REVIEW COMMISSION 

KOSHRC NO. 197 

COMMISSIONER OF LABOR 
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY COMPLAINANT 

vs. 
DECISION, FINDINGS OF FACT, 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND 
RECOMMENDED ORDER 

THOMAS.AUTOMATIC CAR WASH RESPONDENT 

* *·* * * * * * * * 

Hon. Peter J. Glauber, Assistant Counsel, Department of Labor, Frankfort, 
Kentucky. 

Thomas G. Thomas, pro se, Personal Representative for the Respondent, 
not representated by counsel, c / o Thomas Automatic Car Wash, 5364 Dixie 
Highway, Louisville, Kentucky 

FOWLER - Hearing Officer 

* * * * * * * * * * 

On June 3, 1975, an inspection was made by the Department of Labor, 

at a place of employment operated by the Respondent, Thomas Automatic Car 

Wash, at 5364 Dixie Highway, Louisville, Kentucky. As a result of that invest­

igation, a Citation ·was issued on June 18, 1975, · consisting ·or one (1) Citation 

listing 21 non-serious violations and corresponding abatement dates. No Item 

was contested and the matter became final without further action. 

A follow-up investigation and inspection was made on August 11, 1975, 

again-bythe--Department of Labor, of the same location on Dixie Highway in 

Louisville, Kentucky, operated by the Respondent Company. 
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As a result, the follow-up inspection of August il, 1975, the following was 

alleged: 

It was alleged that the Citation previously referred to issued 

under KRS Chapter 338, was not posted at or near each place of an alleged 

violation referred to in the Citation, in violation of 803 KAR 2 :125 Section 1(1). 

A proposed penalty ~was made as a result of this Citation, and the 

abatement date was set for August 23, 1975. It was further alleged that.as 

a result of the follow-up inspection of August 11, 1975, the Respondent Company 

had failed to correc..t.jtems number 18, 19, and 21 of the first violation as -----indicated in paragraph 12, a, b, and c of the Complaint as follows: (a) 

Violation of 29 CFR 1910. 264 (c)(l)(iii)(b), "extractor not provided with interlock 

device which prevented cover from being opened while basket in use". The pro­

posed penalty for failure to correct item 1 in the original Citation was computed 

to be five days of failure to correct at $175. 00 per day, with previously allowed 

abatement credit, totalling $923. 00. 

The abatement date set for each of items 18, 19, and 21 under the 

original Citation, was August 5, 1975. 

It was further alleged that as a result of the follow-up operation 

of August 11, 1975, that the Respondent had failed to correct item number 19, 

which is item 12 (b) in the Complaint and is alleged as follows: Violation of 

29 CFR 1910. 264 (c)(l)(iii)(c), "manufacturer's rated speed at which extractor 

could be operated was not stamped on inside basket in letters one-fourth inch 

in height". 
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The proposed penalty was for five days of failure to correct at $100. 00 per day 

or a total of $500. 00. -----------It was further alleged that as a result of the follow-up inspection 

of August 11, 1975, that the Respondent had failed to correct item 21, as shown 

in paragraph 12 (c) of the Complaint being as follows: "A violation of 29 CFR 

1910.15l(b) no individuals adequately trained to render first aid, and a list of 

first aid-supplies was•not~-signed~bya-physician~ II--The:penalty-proposecl. for .. 

such violation was for five-days :of:failure-to correct at $100. 00 per day or a 

1 total of $500. 00. 
~ 

The total proposed penalties were for item 1 of the new Citation, 

being a failure to post the previous violation of $500. 00. Failure to correct 

item-number 18, $923. 00; failure to correctite:nLnumberJ9, $500. 00; failure 

to correct item number 21, $500. 00, total o~ 

All of the aforesaid Citations and penalties are contested by the 

Respondent, both as to the original Citation of failure to post the previous 

violation and for the failure to correct items 18, 19, and 21 of the original Citation. 

The pertinent procedural.dates and information are as follows: 

1. Inspections were made of the aforesaid premises on June 3, 

1975, and a follow-up examination on August 11, 1975. One Citation was issued 

alleging failure to post the previous violations and failure to correct items 18, 

19, and 21 of the original Citation and said Citation was issued on August 20, 1975. 

2. Notice of Contest was received on August 29, 1975. 

3. Notice of Contest with copy of the Citations and proposed 

penalty was transmitted to the KOSH Review Commission on August 29, 1975. 
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4. Notice of Receipt of Contest was mailed on September 2, 1975, 

and Certification of Employer Form was received on September 5, 1975. 

5. The Complaint was received on September 18, 1975. No formal 

answer was received but the original letter of protest of the Respondent received 

August 23, 1975, and was and is, considered as an Answer herein. 

6. The case was assigned to a Hearing Officer on October 14, 1975. 

7. Hearing was scheduled and held on November 5, 1975, at 11:00 

A. M .• at the Legal Arts Building, Louisville, Kentucky. 

8. The Receipt of the Transcript of the Evidence of the Hearing 

was received on December 4, 1975, and no Briefs or Memorandum was 

requested by either party. 

The aforesaid hearing was held under the provisions of KRS 338. 071(4), 

one of the provisions dealing with the safety and health of employees which authorize: 

the Review Commission to hear and rule on appeals from Citations, Notifications 

and variances issued under the provisions of this Chapter, and to adopt and pro­

mulgate rules and regulations with respect to procedural aspects of the hearings. 

Under the provisions of KRS 338. 081, hearing was authorized by provisions of 

said Chapter and such may be conducted by a Hearing Officer appointed by the 

Review Commission to serve in its place. After hearing and appeal, the Review 

Commission may sustain, modify or dismiss a Citation or penalty. 

The testimony of the witnesses will be discussed in the order of the 

Citations commencing with the failure to post the previous violation. 
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The testimony of the Department was that the Citation had not been 

posted, either at the locale of the extractor, which had been the basis of the 

Citation, nor at the business office or cashier's desk at the car wash. The 

Respondent Company is engaged in the business of an automatic car wash 

wherein automobiles are-driven to the-car wash, the driver leaves the 

automobile and it automatically proceeds through a washing process and is 

picked up on the other side by employees of the Respondent, who then clean 

the inside of the automobile, -wash the windows and wipe the excess water from 

the automobile,__:_::::The__:_:__ testimony is uncontradic ted that the Citation was __ not 

posted at the time-of re-inspection. Respondent testified that the Citation had 

been put there, but that it had been either removed or had been kept in the 

automobile of the Respondent, or one of its employees, for a safe keeping. 

There is little evidence to dispute the fact that the Citation was not posted in 

accordance with the regulations. 

The testimony concerning the failure to correct the condition which 

. existed on the extractor in not providing an interlocking device and not stating 

the :manufacturer's rated speed is contained in page 34 of' the proof, in which 

the compliance officer testified that as he started toward the extractor the 

employee of the Respondent stated that nothing had been done on the extractor 

and that they, the Respondent, had called a man to work on it but that he had not 

come and that in any event no work had been done on the extractor. This contained 

the total amount of proof which was obtained at the hearing concerning whether or 

not the extractor had been corrected, insofar as the department of Labor was 

concerned. 
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The Respondent's testimony concerning the extractor was that they 

had called a man to work on it and had been u nable to get anyone to fix it and 

that another extractor had been delivered on August 18th and was in use at the 

time of the hearing. /!espondent's proof further showed that the extractor 

was not used at any time during the period during which the violation was to be 

abated and that, in fact, the fuses had been removed from the extractor, making 

it inoperable] 

The same character of proof would apply to 12 (b) in the Complaint 

in relatiort=to0 the--=-fa-ilure·to ·state 0 ±he::manufacturerJs rated speed on the extractor.-~ 

The proof on the violation as alleged in paragraph 12(c), that "no 

individu als were adequately trained to render first aid, and a list of first . aid 

supplies was not signed by a physician, " alleged violation of 29 CFR 1910.15l(b), 

was erroneously described, or improperly reported, as referring to sub-section 
--- \ L I) 7 c · 

I ,t,l-"t0'4 • 

),/'which your hearing officer ~ -an-d which we assume was in error 

and intended to be sub-sectio (b), which provides that in order to be included 'C·----
in the regulation the employer ·must have 8 or more employees and the proof of 

th~mbe~-of~~~~~--~-:~ve a t the original inspectio:_:~lly 

lacking in the re-inspection . .,;;...---- ~~f) 4 jbciiZC~ ;l 

The proof was somewhat uncertain_ as to the exact number of 

employees that were employed by the Respondent and it seemed reasonable that 

the employees that were on the payroll were not engaged in the business of 

operating the extractor and that the cashier, at least, had nothing at all to do with 
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the operation of the machinery. T he re is little question that there was no person 

- adequately trained to render first aid at the time of the re-inspection and that 

the near est hospital facility was several miles away. It does appear that there 

was a kit of firs t aid supplies which was present and that this kit had been 

apparently s igned by a doctor, who stated that it was apparently sufficient for 

minor injuries and there was a s igned list of the items that were there. 

There is no question raised about the sufficiency of the original 

Citation or the finality of same. 

The=-tes timon-57~evealed t hatdhe::operation:-wasc_ one='which~=-was.clo~.· __ _ 

a degree seasonal in nature, and one which undoubtedly had to r equire part­

time help, presumably young boys, who would be available to work for certain 

hours during some days in the operation of the car wash. It could~ properly 

be classified, I feel, as a business which had certain peak periods during which 

time a number of boys would need to be employed, and correspondingly during 

periods of time, possibly two or less, could operate the business. 

The extractor was used to extract the water from the rags which 

were used in wiping the excess water from the automobiles after processing 

through the autO"matic car wash. 

Respondent's testimony was, and uncontradicted, tha t prior to the 

abatement period a wringer was us ed for the purpose of drying out the rags and 

that the extrac tor was disconnected, defused, and no t used at all during the 

pe r iod of abatement and that there was no extrac tor used until the n ew one 

arrived, approximately August 18, 1975. 
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After ·hearing the testimony of the witnesses and after having read 

and examined the evidence and considered same, together with the arguments 

of the parties, it is concluded that substantial evidence on the record considered 

as a whole supports the following Findings of Fact. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The original Citation was not contested, nor were the 

penaltie s ;c0and-thaLthe ,fines ,::totalling s$ 2 8~~~;00. havec;;not;:been:::.paid~as pe:r.the= 

inspec tion of June 3, 1975. --

2. That -the ·follow-up-inspection-ccwas-•m:ade~yanothe-r-0.compliance-­

officer on August 11, 1975. 

,--' '( " / 3· That the re-insp .. e. ction did not show whether· the condition concernin 

the -extrac/or .~hadheen_a b a ted or not, but merely showed that nothing had been done 

I 
to the m:i. t hine. 

\ 4. An attempt was made to fix the extractor and the new one was 

' 
ordered. ·\ 

T hat the Respondent started using the hand wringer ins tead of l 
the extract(r on August 4 , 1975, and that the fu s _es were removed from the 

extrac tor a \ the equ ipment was not usable. 

6. The hi story of the Company shows an accident occur red in 

May, 1975, resultingin°a bFok en arm as a result of the use oL the extract.or. 

7. The r e was no person present a t the time of the re-inspection 

who was skilled in first aid. 

8. Supplies were present for first aid use, but had not been 

certified as such by a doctor . 
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9. ·Anew extractor.w.as,..deli.v.er.ed_on"August..18.,,, =lS.'7,5...,_axid Js, ip 

use. 

' There is no certain proof that the Respondent had 8 or more 
I 

, , 'xn:>:m.ployees working regularly:, or at the time of re-inspection. ~( t-'-

11. The pro_ceduraLrequirements of the inspec_tion and the re­

inspection were adequate and appropriate consideration of the proposed penalties 

and credits . was given under the guide lines set forth by the Department for 

its compliance ·division~ -

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW -

It is: c·oncluded-by the:'-Hearing 0Officer,-'-as a matterof law-:--(1) that----· 

the .violation-oQf 803 KAR~2!125 Sect-ion-1(1),. failure.to. posLthe Citation was 

proven and that the -fine and abatement date should be sustained; (2) that the 

Department has not proven~·a:failure-::toc-currec:t~the~violat-ion~ef~items~l8~ 19, con--__ 

cerning the extractor. ~ \here ~roof that the extractor was·, in fact, 
I'---':::,__--- - . -

used on the re-inspection or had been used at any time prior to the re-inspecti9._p.. 

The only testimony was that nothing had been done to the extractor. A correction 

may be ac com plis he d · by dis - continuing the ·use of- the . dangerous instrument and _ 

· · this appears'-to be such a situation. The~fact that nothing was done to the extractor 

does not, of itself, prove that there had been no correction of the violation, since 

removal of the equipment from use effectively would remove the hazard which 

is sought to be controlled by the regulation. · The Department has failed to carry 

the burden of proof insofar as items 18 and 19 are conce.rned in the use of the 

extractor and those violations and the penalties attached thereto, should be 

vacated. 
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Insofar "as Iten1 21 is· concerned, in that no individual-was 

adequately trained to render first aid-and a list of first aid Sl pplies was not 

signed by a physician, it is important to note that there be 8 or more employees 

to be covered under such regulation. 

29 CFR 1910.151(b) ha.s been held to be vague and .. un-enforceable 

under many- of the aecisions of the Review Commission. In that"-regard~ Love 

Box~Goa-nc~ ... ,s,CCH;:.ESHG-~a.rag.~aph...18, 834, dated--:Octoberl0, __ Ht74, Q...SHRC-

that the conditions set forth in the-regulation·-are~too ·va-gue to be complied with.~ 

However, '-the Hearing Commissioner·,is aware=-a1so-c:of,.th·ecfdecision:-;of~ October-2-l-;-

1975,- in KOSHRC NO. 141, Public Service--CommissionAor and on the behalLof __ 

Commissioner of Labor, Commonwealth- of-Kentucky vs. Capital Oil and Gas in 

which this Review-Commission· sustained an Orde.rvacating-the··,pen-alty~for:cac:-··::--

-violation o-f 29 GFR l910.151(h} for other reasons and did not touch on the vagueness 

of the regulation. 

It is concluded that/ in spite,- of the vagueness of the regulation, and 

the lack of sufficient information concerning the :number of employees- present at·-•--­

the time of re-inspection, thafa list of medical supplies was present and listed 

but not signed by a doctor, that there remains sufficient proof-of the -lack of a 

persons skilled in first aid to sustain:,:_J.be p-P-Opo.s._ed _ .violation, -but also grounds 
,,- --

sufficient to show such compliance as to indicate good faith and to require a 

reduction ·in proposed penalty. -



-11-

RECOMMENDED ORDER 

IT IS ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the Citation issued 

against-the RespondenLas Item 1 (violation of 803 KAR 2:125 Section 1(1), 

failure to post violation and the fine of $500.-00 is hereby sustained and the 

abatement date--i,s.-re"""'set for_.30_ day.s.Jrom___tb.e _effe.cJiY_e_date___o_Lthis_Drder. 

ITTS7FURTHER--ORDERED :ANDADJUDGED tln t the Citations: ___ _ 

vacated. 

IT IS;FURTHEH -ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the Citation - - -

issued against-,the-Respondent for failure to correct Item 21 in the original 

Citation is sustained and a fine of $100. 00 is imposed upon the Respondent 

for -such failure~-to correct and the-abatement-date-is-re--set-for--30-days--from- -

the effective date of this Order. 

Dated: December 19, 1975 
Frankfort, Kentucky 

DECISION NO. 206 

N-T. FOWLER, 
Hearing Officer - KOSHRC 
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